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A HIETHETEBF SAINT JOSEPH PARISH. RENOVO, PA.

The beginninqs of Catholicism in the westsrn end of
clinton County is eiusive, The Dlocesan record of 1929 has
EWO dlsti;ct accounts, One account degcribes the labors of
Father JnLn 0. Gilligan,-the other traces the efforte of
Father LnLis Michael Fink, 0.5.B.

Dur;ng the twenty years from 1853 until his death 1n
1873, Fnther gilligan was the rpionesr priest" who cared
for Catholic families from Bellefonte in Centre County.
northward through Howard {where once a parish was
Eatablishfed by him), to Lock Haven, in ¢linton County. Where
he estah#iahed a chapel, uhlch_ahnrtly bacame the Immaculatsa
Eanceptiéh parish. From there he was known to travel
pp-tiver by boat to minister to the Irigh Catholic Families
in theirlhumes and other temporary bulldings* in tha area of
what latar became Henovo.

Father Louis M. Fink, orlginally from Saint Marys, PA..
joined the Banedictine Order in Latrobe, PA. Upon his
nrdinatién on May 28, 1857, he was assigned to Salnt John

|

|
wofgmporary buildinge® seems to have hesn an adicnorial

{nterpretation of the technical land-usage term
=ipprovemant”. Improvements were any bullding constructad
on a clalm, showing that the land was occupled or being

worked or usmsd, Many of them wvere not the moast Bukstantial

|
of buildings, hence “temporary® until something more lasting

|
was bulle.
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the Evangellst Parleh, 1in Bellafonte. Fros there ha
ministered particularly to the German-speaking Catholles of
the area. | Hies travels toock him hy way of Snow Ehoe, PA..
gver the mountalin to Renovo. An historical note on Father
Fink 183 that thie local Catholic missianary later became the
bishop of Eucarpia (KEansae and the Indiam Territory) and
firet Bishop af the Diocese of Leavanworth. KS. (today the
Diocege n; Eangas Cltv}, the great mizelonary of the Kanaas
prairies unt{l hiz death in 1804,

The miaslonary migraticns of these two attest to the
predominant Irish and German composition of the populatian
of the valley formed by the West Branch of the Susguehanns
River. They alsp show that even in the mid-ninetesnth
century the two now=famlliar routes, which have hacowme FPA
State Routes 144 N&S and 120 E&EW, wara already being used.

Tha Great American Civil War was fought hetwsen
1860-65. During the prat-Clvil War boom, the Philadelphia and
frie Rallroad hecame a wmajor land-holder of the valley, and
the area betwszen Paddy's Run and Drury's Run was developed
into the town of Henovo, incorporated [n 1B66. Tn 1869,
Father Joseph Kaelin (Koelin} was sent by Bishop Jaremiah F.
Shanahan, Bigshop of the new Diocese pf Harrishburg {(=atab.
1868) to begin the new parish of Salnt Joseph in Renavo.

The hlrth date of our parish 1la Aprll &, 1869, when aslx lots
vere hbought from the Philadelphia and Erie Land Company in
the name of the Bishop of Harrisbhurg for the Parish of Saint

Jomseph. The total cost was %$1,027.00 for the tract of land




3

extending back frem Huron Avenus, betwaen Larch Strest {(our
|
present—Far alley) and Ninth Strest.

Father Kaelin or Koelln was asslgned as pastor opn vay
6, 1869.]| Was 1t diplomacy or coincidence, that the change
Cf a single latter in hia name, he could appsar as Irlsh or
Garman. IIt ls hard to determine the actual nationallty of
this rirgt pastor even from parish documents, the second
letter séema ta ha deliberately vagque. He wanm apparently

gnly an Trganizing agent of the Bishop, for he was sucreeded

In 1870 ?y Father Edward Fleld. Father Field i recocded in

the Baptismal Records of July 20, 1870, seemingly inspecting
the potential of the new parigh. He was assigned as the mecond

pPastor in October of 1870.
I
In 1359-?0, the Flrst Vatican Council wam held

prumulgaéing the primacy and infallinility of the pope ag
dogma , a%d defining doctrine on natural rellgion,

revﬂlutiqn. faith and the relatlonship of failth and reason.
Turing tﬂis time of changes and renewal in the Church
Univeraa{, Fr. Fleld has the honor and raspanglibllity of
organlzing the parish in the construction pf itm firat Chureh.

It vag s |rough log-wood Frame bufiding measuring 7% fest hy

25 Ieet facling Larch Street {aour present-day alley)., while
the rectory was buillt facing Ninth Straet, begide and bahind
the Church.

Theipastnrﬂ af Saint Joseph's did not seem to Btay
1ong. Fathar Thomas J. Hellly was named the third pastor in

]
Qctober of 1871. He apparently contracted smallpoz during

l
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b, ;
the epidemic in the =pring of 1872. Father William J. Pope
adminiztared the parish until Angust. Upon resuming his
dutisg perhaps too pramaturely, Father Reilly died in
September of 1871. Fathers Bagstible and Barry are noted as

t
ti1ling In until Father Francis Xavior Schmide was aseigned
as the fourth permanant pestor on October 10, 1872 until his

transfer |on November 2Z. 1877.

Father Schmidt realized the rapid grawth of the parish
wvaa going to necessitate a larger, mors roamy chuarch. He
vag also|concernsd about the spiritual and educational
growth and development of his people. He is creditad with
organizing the Catholle Education of Renovo. He egtabliahad

a Parochial School of nine grades under the charge of Thomas

Rgan, Huly Hogan Weymouth and Gilbert Benton. Gillbart Banton
wvas the flrst son of the parish to enter the priesthaocd. Mr.
Bettan iater achieved the titie of Monsignour and served in
tha offlce of Vicar Censeral of theIHarrisburg Diccese.

Du:ing the year of 1875, Fa;her Schmidt supervised the
buildingiof a cnmhinatinnlChurch—and—Echnnl, This would
pecome Salnt Joseph's second Church in less than six years.’
Facing HLrun Avenue alnng-Hinth Btreet, the maln hody of the
thurch would be 64 famst long by 36 feet wide. The bullding
formed a large rectangle with two *"wings." The rear of the
Church extended out containing the manctuary, 13 feet deep

- k]

and 18 feet wide. A wvestry measuring 9 feet wide and 17 feet
E W

leng, prohahly extendad off the reaR 2ide wall opposite Ninth

Street. | The main walle of the larger hody of tha hullding

were 32 faet high with "Gothic gables®
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facing HLrnn Avanus., Seating capacity vam acknowledged as
480, iith a gallery capable of holding anothar 100.
Adjnininh the Church by a hall waa the Schocl wing., It la
degcrived as containing thres 3 feet by 24 fest rooms.*

T1£1 Singer was avarded the contract for the buliding
on May EE. 187%5. Plshop Shanshan *consecrated” [more lixely
solemnly "dedicated”] the new Church op October 19, 1876.
The tut%i coat of the bullding project wam $12,000.

Father Schamidt alze sav the nwed to bulld the communlty
af Saint Joseph Parish-family. asd to strengthen lts falth.
Toe this and, Father Schmidt regquestsd four Sisters of Mercy
be assigned to teach In Salnt Joseph's Parochial School. They

took up rasidence in the forwmey Roller home on Winth Street.

*Thara JIllt no photographes of the second Church and first
school éﬁr any pwople with Living memory of it. Soma argus
that Lt Ffaced Hinth Street, I cannot say which. Arguoasnts
can defy logic. The total length of the second Church wvas
YES ﬂg Elltp To facse Ninth strast, it vould have overlaopped
with thae firet church axtending 7% feet from Larch Street.
Yot B3 Juut from Huron Avenus, would have the sacond Church
cnllidqu with the Rectory. The School of three 9 x 24

TOORE pﬁlll another problem. it im purpocrted to have hesn at
right lﬂgluu to the first Church to vhich it var latar
cnnn&ctid forming an L-shaps, access to the =chool wvas fTrom

Huron Avenus between the two Churches vhich created a sort

|
of gourtyard for the School.



[second houee from the cornér., {mmediately behind Dr. Dwyer's
houge which was on the corner. across from the Church. ]

On November 9. 1876 the achool openned for clagses,
begioning|a one hundred and seven years himtary of Parochial
Educatlonf{in Renovo. The flrst year's enrcliment was
geventy-one puplls. By OQctoher 1877, anrocllment was at two
hundred and gixzty puplils. It was necapsary to opnnect the
schogl to|the First Church hullding. It is said that planks
vere added ta the bhacks of the pews to make desks.

In the wider world, 1876 was the year that Col. Ceorge
Cugter ané 264 #moldiers of the Seventh Calvary were
magsacred|at Little Big Harn; apd Mark Twain published Tom
Sawyar. Besldes the opening of S5t. Joseph's Schaol, Pr.
Schmlidt alsc acquired five acres from James Murphy and his
wife, at Lhe cost of 1500 for the creation of the Saint
Joseph's Farish Cemetery at Drury's Fdap. On Jun= 6, 1881,
Bishop Shanahan vislted again the twelve year-old parish of
Saint Joseph's. On that occaslan he administered the
Sacrament|of Confirmation te one hundred people. Then a
procession moved the celebration to Drury's Run where the
newly cleared cemetery was solemnly consacrated. The present
day cemetery at Drury's Run iz approached from Brewery Hollow,
but in earller times the cemetery was approached from the
Drucy's Rln gide by a step bank of steps. Funerals were
usually earried from the Church toc the raflvay station on
Hinth Street and a special funearal train wvith a car for the

nourner= took the body of the deceased to Drury's Pun stop.
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Then with pure man-power the remains were carried up the

gtaps to|the hurial aite.

Father Schmidt seems to have had some help during the
lagt y=ar of his pastorate, ohe Father W.J. Grill's name
appear freguently in the sacramental reqistries [(from July
29, 1A7R|{to April 22, 1877). PBut Father J.J. Rellly is=
aprorded|with becoming the first apzistant pastor from April

22, 1877| to September 27, LA78. There have heen no less than

gixty—five amsimtants. associatas or parechlial wicars from
1877 untll Father David J. Arseneault was tranefrred io
1984 .

An Irish tarrorist soclety, known ag the Molly r
Maguires, with strong ties te the ceoal mining areas near
Scranton, PA were hroken up in IA77; and the first violent
nationall ratlroad strike ocourred that year, Father-William
Franclis MeIlheny became ouy Fifth pasteor. from Novembar 23.
1877 untgl October 12, 1678. Father worked mainly to ' 'reduce
the debt created by the cenetructions. It wae also during
his time that the Parochial School was expanded to include
High Bchool.” The High Bchool department would survive ninety
yEAra. kne discrepancy of hiatory:- the Hlgh School departament
is sald to have been housed from 1877-1883 in the southern
front parlours of the Convent. which was built durling Father
Igoe's pasteorate which began in Octebar, 1870.

The Catholle Church saw the eleaction of a new pops, Leo

XTIT in|IHTH. to succeed Pope Pius IX. The Cathelle
|

population of Renovo saw the appointment of a new pastor,
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thalr Eixth, Fathar Jamee Igoe on October 13, 1878, 'To hi=s
creditc is accorded the dispelling of a "considerable
sectarian feeling." With the 2id of hi= assistant Father
James M. Barr. they were able "to equlp a pioneer corpa
which VaE long remembered.®

Faéher [goe looking after the neede of the teaching
nung . had bullt 1p 1878 the ariginal convent an Ninth
Strest.| Very early on, in 1BA2, a third story was added,
Anather (discrepancy of hletory notes that this canvent was
usad until 1961 (eighty-three years). But very clearly
nistory |records the moving date into a mew twsntieth century

convent [oocurrad on Jantary 31, 1962. Either the poor nuns

went unhovsed for a semester or the date of the cornerstons
of the nev convent wae being vsed as an indicator.

Bingo was develaped from the Italien lotte gams af
tumbula |[(tombola) in 1B84: it would becoms for Cathalie
parishes. including Saint Joseph's. an important
mﬂney-réising enterprisa. {n a wmore gpiritual side, the
Amreican Catholie Church held the Councll of Baltimore in 1684
producing a standard American Cathollc poliecy and the
infamous Paltimore Catechlam. On October 15.1135? Father
Matthaw |Ignating O0'REellly was appointed Pastor and administratar
af Saint Joseph's Parish. Father A, HEenny was the asaistant.
replacing Father Barr |{n 1B83. Father 0'Reflly's major

accompllshments wer® on pastoral lavels to reduce the parish

|
debt and the formatian of the Father Matthew Total Abstinence

Sociaty.
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The pevly congecrated Bishop of Harrisburg, Rt. Rev,
Thomas M:Env&rn, D.D-. appninteﬁ Father Joseph J. {J.J.]
Gormley s the eighth pasteor of caint Jogaeph's Parish on
May 21. 1%33, wWithin a month, on Jupne 17,1888, the bizhop
made qis flr=t official episcopal vieltation for the purpose
of administerlng Confirmation on one hundred and seventy
candidates {representing four years of students plus

adulte). | Thus realizing the vitality of the less than

twanty year old parish, plans began on further expansion of

!
the parieh facllities.

Before Father Gormley could arrange for this expansion,

the Eastaern United States endured the blizzard of 1888, in
|

whirh 400 deathes vere attributed to the storm and 1ts

aftermath. The famous Johnstown flood of 1889, in which

2,300 llves were los=t, cvershadows the flood devastating

encvo a2t the s=ame time. In the world an the American

scene. Fllis Island was opened in 1890 to accept the rising

tide of immigrants coming from Buropa. Pope Lea XIII wrote
I

and prﬂmﬁlgated hie snecyclical Rerum NHovarum in 1891 on the

conditian of the working class. But before the spring of

1892, Fr. cGormley =xpandead the extsting school in the area

betwveen tha rectory and convent facing Ninth Street. It is
beliaved|that an auditarium vas constructed in thie expanded
schoal t?at would houvse St. Jogeph's congregation for Mass

during the building phase of its third and newvest Church-building.
Undesignated {mptovements were alsc made on the rectory and

convent at that time as well. In early 18%2 the two exlsting
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Church bulldings were razed, and ground was broken an Hay 11,
1892, for the new Church. Eishop MeGavern returned te Renova
on August |14, 1892 {eome accounts state August 15] far the
golemn and fltting services dedicating and Iaying the
Ccornerstone of this third Church of Salnt Joseph's Parish.
It i= not |recorded where the Cathollc population gathered For
3unday Ma=s during this paried of dempollition and construction.
[Although [ane newspaper account refers to "the ald church on

Ninth Street" as a gathering place for proceseion to the new

Church en|the coccasion of itz dedicatian in 1897.1

Wha would have known that this was economically going
to be a bad rime for bwilding. 1B92 was the year of the
Homestead |Steel Strixes of Pennsylvania Hﬁich had a advarse
affect on|asasociated industries 1ike coal and raliroading.
A financial panic began in 1893 and 1lad {nto a four-vear
depression. It is all the more amazing and to his credit
that Pather Gormley proceeding undeterred once demolition had
commenced|to bring the project to completion.

It 18 noted that excursion tralns were run from Eane to
Hilllamsport on the agccasian of the dedication ceremcny for
the layvying of the church's cornerstone. Bilshop McGovern
arcived iL Renovo on the *“FPast Line' accompanied by Father
t.L,, Benton (native son cof the 1;1.'-,1.1'iE.|1'1‘.|-lI Services that day
would inckude three Masges, the administration of the Sacrament
of Confirmation to another ene hundred and Eéventf. a parade in

wvhich alll the Cathalle Saciestiesg of the pariseh were reviewed

by the Bishop. Before this assemblage of people. accarding
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to the Rites of the cathelie¢ Charch. Bishop McGovern,

attired fn appropriate fpiacopal robes, 1@d the prayers and

‘he blesging of a Cross, which vas placed whare the main altar

in the compietad Church wvould he srected. He proceed to the

arag of £he morner of tha foundation. and with a golden

trowel placed seme mortar on the foundation. With the ald
of a barthe put tha cernerstone, containing a tin bex with
apprnpriéte church data inside, into place. A procasaion
commencad arsund the foundation, during which it was blessed
apd wada |holy for the support of the Church building that
vould rise on that site to house the parish community of
Saint Jnieph. Thera 1s8 some lnconsistency concerning the
cornerstone informatfon. It is inscribed:
on u&e gide- A, M. D- G.
| J UL YLY
on the other mide: A. D.
1852
It appearz the original date for the cornerstane laylng was
to he th? geventh of July. and was later moved tc the
suventaaﬁth nf July after the astone-cutter had engraved the
stiginal |date. He wam able to sgueeze in the "1" to maks a
e L nutluf a "7". Then the date must have been changed again
mor e radically to Augumst 14 == too lata for later changes.
Many people also ask what does the lettering, "A.M.D.G..°
signify.| It 15 a Latin abbreviation for Ad Maiorem Dei

Gloriam, | which meanz "fFor the Greater Glory of God.®

i
Cfempletion of the boilding would take the hebter part
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of five years. The community was under roof "by the folloving
MqumberL following tha laying of the cornerstone. This may,
be interpreted to mean Novemher 1892 or November 18%3. In
either ciae a remarkable achisvement. But considering the
dimensions of the buildinag, the latter date seems WMOTA -
logical.| The interior encloses a nave and sanctbary 120 feat
long by 60 feet wide to a celling 40 feet high withaut a
single interior plilar or support, thus permitting an
anobhstructed viaw of the altar from any point in the church.
Tha seat;ng capacity was cited ae for BOO peopie. Exterior
dimensiops are 125 feet by 65 feet. The apex of the roof
rises 75 feet. [Becent repalrs in 1989 to the rear chlmneys
damonstrated the accuracy of this measurement, an elghty.foot
boom just barely ceached the siightly higher chimneys.] It

im within this thirty-five foot space between ceiling and

roof thaL a unigue beam—work supports holds up walls and Foof,
ralpnforced with extericor buttresmes. OQuite an accomplighment
befors t%a use of steel beams and glrders. A bell tower is
incarporated into the corner of the boilding on Huren Avenue
and NintL Straet, rising nearly half again as high as the apex.
This home of Saint Josephtes Parizgh was considered the most
magnifirent church in the state, and the only {or Eirst])
church-building in the United States of lte size for lte time
{before the popular use of steel) to allow such a large opeh
araa for worship. The style 15 considered "Romanesque." and
wane desfgn&d by Wagner and Reitmeyer, of Williamsport. The

orlginal cost was $45,000 [(a sixtieth anniversary newsclip
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[
sftes tha cost as $65.000.].

Father.G+ L. Bentan, aur parish's firat native son to
ba ardained and who accompanled the hishop for the laying of
the cornerstone, was the mailn celebrant of the Mass en June
27, IE?TJ [the centenary i{ssue of the church history
wrongly published "January 27, 1837"] when Bishop McGovarn,
nccnmpanfed by fifteen priests, solemnly dedicated our
Church. 'Annther completing additlion to the Church was
lem 1nrgé Pipe Crgan made by the A. B. Felgemaker Company of
Erle, Pa. which was placed in the small cheolr gallery some
time hetween 1897 and 169%. A name remembered in connection
with Saint Joseph's Qrgan and Cholr was the late Miszs Johanna

A."Josle" Donley wha was the parizh's official arganlst for

nearly =ixty vears until a couple years hafore har death on

Hovembker B, 1975,

Fathar J.J. Gorwley was indeed a powarful Faree within

the Parish of Saint Joasaph and the Eenavo Community. Ha vas

@ pastoral pastor ax well ag a physical builder. He looked
to the needs of the poor, little kXnown is that he baught
sgveral Jntire lots of the Drury's Runm Cemetery from hls own
funds Enithat no ane would be refused Christian burial. He
also established the priest's burlal lot with hie own Funds,
hi= own manollthie tomhetone marks the site.
Shortly after beginning the demolition phase of the
ney Ehurgh, 2 period of national economic depression commenced
and prevailed throughout the construction phase. Fathear Cormley

not only sought the combined ceooperation of tha parieh For
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the huilqing and appeinting of the new Church, but he also
{oinad iﬂ with his own endowmants. His contributicns to the
{ntellectual and moral improvement of the community wvas
through J;e organization of the Renovo Catholic Lyceum in
February of 1891. 1In 1897 the first Catholic School Board
was Formed with Mr. John Russell as its chalrman. The
farmatiagn of thies Board was a feat of politiecal engineering.
In grdar to demonstrate to the Catholic congregation and to
the community at large the necesaity and service provided by
Farachial Education in a time when flnancial deht would
dezcend upon the parish, and while the genpsral efonomy vwas
tight, Father Gormley announced the closing of Saint
Joseph'se School. The Public School Board was at a 1oss how
to regpond or to accept the influx of =0 many students In all
grades. IThe Catholilis congraegation also hecame awvare of what
they might lose. After much negotiation, resulting in the
larving bare of wuch of what the parish thought and felt as
wall as what the public community was willing to daoa to help,
Father Cormley notiflied the Pubklic School Board that he
wonld reconsider and continue to operate Saint Joseph'm
schogl .

Hi= [death on February 27, 1906, =&t off the largest
public display af communal emotion ever Esen in the Borough
af REenowva. Saint Jeosaph'®e Church was Filled past 1ts 800
person seating capacity. to standing in every avallable

epace, and then ocut ipto Winth Street and Huron Avenue,

vhare loudspeakers had to be hastily set up to allow at
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least ah andial! participation in the funeral ceremony. It
vas the custom to have the pall-bearers cArry any person's
casket Frum the church up Winth Street te the train station.
From there ona or two cars of a epecial fuperal train would
Carry tPe decaasad and the movorner®s to Drury's Run. It 1a
repnrte? that the twelve pall-bearers led a procession that
Fill=d %ineteen mourners cars when Father Gormley was lald
tao reatk

nlfn during Father Gurmley's pastorate, the main altar
vag cnn%ecrated an September 27, 189% by tha third blshop of
the HarLishurg Diocese, Rt. REev. Johm W. Shanahan. The
Knights! of Columbus, Council #54%., was chartered for the
fragernity of 1ta members and service to Catheolic endeavors
on Mevember 12, 1900. On May 27, 1901, the Dlocese af

lwas astablished. Once again the axls of spiritual

Altoona
dire:tign and vitality would flev north and scuth, linking
Renovo Lgain with the ariging of itE growth. Catholicism
moved anm Philadelphia to Hedford. from Bedford to
Bellefonte, from Rellefonte ta both Tock Haven and Snow
fhoe, and from Lock Haven and Snuow Shoe to Renovo.

PaLt of the effect of the sstabllshment of & new
diocese are the re-aligning of loyalties. Father Garmley
from Harrisburg would ever remaln loyal to Saint Joseph's,
remainiLg ever after hisg death. The S51sgters of Mercy on
the ather hand decided to remaln within the Harrishurg

dipcess. So after twenty-aix yesrs of service [(16876-1902),

they vacated Pengya. To f11!1 the woid, the Sisters,
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Servante |af the Immaculate Heart of HMary began their tenure
at Baint ! Joseph's.
Before Fr. Gormley's death, the Church lest the longest

relgning |pope, the one who took the church into the

twentiath century, Pope Leo x11{. 1tn August 1903 Pope Plus

X wag lected, this man would later be recognized as a

Saint. AE wpuld further promote development of Eucharistic
devation|and Catholic and Christian community. Bishonp Eugaene
Garvey n?med Father John J. Ludden the ninth pastor of Saint

Joseph's |Church on June 17, 1906. Father J.J. Brady, tha

asslistant pastor, had actad as adminlstrator untll the naw
pastar arrived. Father Ludden found that the accommndations
nade by éather Gormley in 1892 for the students of Salnt
Jogeph'e |5chool ne longer were sufficient. With owver 300
elementary =tudents and flfty high school studente, the

building [ef the long-familier three-—story white-hrick School

wvas begun. The cornerstone was lald in 1910 and the =chool
cpened for clasees in 1911. During the Interim, students

i
were taught both in the Enights of Columbuz bullding and in

)
the BRenovo Borough bBulildling.

|
Father Ludden also zaw the wopen's Cathollc zeal Flower

in the charter recelved by Court St. Veronica, #1111, of the
Catholic|Daughters of the Americas in 1909. This

organizatlon dedicated to promoting unity and charity atill

remaing active to this day. On & much vwidsar scals,. an

organigation which would also have its alfect on Renovo and

an Salnt|Joseph's Parish was heing founded. 1910 saw the
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|
Boys Scouts of imerica formed; 1912 beheld the founding of

i
the Amarican Girl Guides, which changed 1ta name ta the Girl
Scouts in 1913.

Father Ludden wam replaced as pastor in June of 1912 by

k
Father Peter J. Fox, who later became a Monslgnour at Saint
Mark's Parish in Altoona, PA., Saint Mark'sm and Saint
Joseph'm saem to shara much. The churches are strikingly
dimilar in styls and mize, thair latsr convante-turned-

Mark'®s from Saint Jomeph's, and Fr. Grimme later came from

rectorles|are virtually identical, Megr. Fox went to Saint
Saint Mark's. Fope Plua X died in Auguat of 1%14:; hism
succemger; Benedict XV was named {n September.

Father Fox was a zealous and tlrelesa pagtor working to
davelop tLe gpiritual and liturgical. religious and
fraternal|apicit of the parish compunity. The “"Lyceunm®
originally started by Fr. Goarmley {n 1891 expanded {ts
format tu!pruvide entertalmment for Catholic boye. Home
talent showa were popular in those days, and Saint Jomeph's
Cramatic Llub wvan mecond Lo ngne. Sports vere encouraged by
Fathar Fox 1in Balnt Joseph's= School. In 1913 the first
baﬂketbili team wam formed, and in 1923 the flrst football
team. During World War I, Father Fox was instrumental in
organizing the SBaint Jaseph's Chapter of the Amarican Had
Crogs. Tt waz in thls way, that many of the ladies of our
parish were ahle to give meny kinds eof ald to our soldiers.

The thar Soclety and The Rosary Society were

incorporated into The Altar and Romary Soclety of Szint
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Jopeph'ejrarieh in 1913. [arigin dates for the two

independent eccletiem are unknawn. A physical memarial to
the Rﬂﬂaf? Bociety and a testament to fts exiatence in 1892,
15 cne of the lovely malp-nave atain glasa windova 1n the
Church] |(Thims soclety contributes {ts time and talents for
the maintenance of the Church and altars and vestments to
this ?EIJ day. The Man's Choirp, which ig stili fondly
rememberad and acclaimed by all, was formed during this timms
vith the [encouragement of the pastor. Finally, far the
aes?hetic and gpliritual mnhancement af the church and parish,
the murals and angels which still adern the sanctuary walls
and churgh celling ware painted. Shortly before Fr.Fox'm
tranefsr, Pope Plus ¥I succeeded Pope Banedict, in February
1922.

The (eleventh pastor agssigned to Salnt Joseph's parish
wag Father Michael T. 0O'Connor. He gerved from May 15, 1924
until his death on April 5, 19832. Father OQ'Connor was an
advocate |of scoutings Troope 4 and 5 ware formed, conailsting
of Cub Scoute; Poy Scouta and Sea Scoouts. A house on Tefith
Streat was used for their meetings. [The scout house seems
to have ;nan dopated to the churech at an unascartaipable
time, then given for the use af the scouting efforks. It
location |appears to have heen near tha rear of the present
Administration Center, facing Tenth Street.] .

Tha|bell which strikes the noon hour and evening

Angelus each day. and peals for Sunday Massges, was installed
|

in thea Church bali-tower in 1974, Thie bell was donated In
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MEmory n} William George McCrea [1899-1924), who loat his
Life in %ha sarvice of his country in an explosion of Turret
#2, an tﬁe U.5.5. Migsigsippl, donated by his parents
and sistgr. Mr. and Mrs. Charles R. McCrea and Mary. The
bell was cast by the McShane Bell Foundry Company.
Ealtiman, MD. Tt measuree 4& inches wide at ite bass, and
33 inchep in helght. In 1582, an eleckronlc strlker and

:
clock was donated and added to the ball system. In Memory
of Charles F. and Anna McCarthy HWaxwell and deceased mémbera
of the H%xvall Family by the Maxwell Children, thim aystem

af the Verdon Bell Company. Columbus, Ohieo. has been in

I.

gervice for ten years at the time of the centenary
[
celebration of our church-bullding in 1%92.
| z
Father Q'Connor vas becoming awvars of the shortage of

uaable buria] sapace in the Drury's Run Cemetery. On
Seaptember 25, 1975 forty acres were purchased from the Mra.
Molly Farwvell Fetate at a coet of $2,500 fnf the new Saint
Joseph's Cemetery in Hyner, PA. Bishop Juh; }DHEPH HoCort:
cnnﬂecraked the cemetery on Octoher 11, 1925, when In Renovo
for the adminietratlion of Conflrmation to ninety-seven
candidates. The fiF;t intermant was of the remalne of

Fobert J. Rujawa on December 14, 1926.
!

r i
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This was an era of change and growth, rlea snd fall.

f

John T. Scopes was found quilty of tsaching "evolution® in

Dayton, TN, and fined 3100 and costs in 1925, Capt. Charles
f
A. Lingbargh succesefully flew the Atlantic Qeoean in 33.%

hours ?n 1927. 1925 msav the Saint Valentine's Day wmassacre
b
in EhiFagur the beginning of the Emplre State Bulldiang in

I
Hew York City: and the Stock Market crach on  October 29, [n
f

our diocese, the Cathedral of the Blessed Sacrament wos also
[
begun in 1929. Poth the Ewpire State Building and the

L3
Cathedral were opened ip 1931, The Ilatter was {ncomplete

!
until 1959,

_ﬂi September 15, 1932, Father Jamas J. Glll wae named
the twelfth pastor of Salnt Joseph's Church. The bime was
tha beginning of the Great Depresslion. Father Gill wam
enncerged that ha would have to close Saint Joseph's School

anrollment of 5aint Jogeph'e, the Pubiic School tesachers

due to a lack of operating funda. Due to the large
r2allzed that the added burden of the increased eprollment
in tha Public Bchool would be excessive. 7Tt was learned
that woluntarily, the public school taachers donated one
month's pay to aid in malntaining Saint Joseph's School.
The parishioners were asked to pay §.10 awveek per child to
further maintaln the schoal. Tha marnesztness and sacrifice

f
of the parishionera d41d coma through to keep the school

}
open. (It is also noted, that the economlie condition af the
times were such that seome familipa A1d tranafer thelr

children to tha Publlc School because of the i{inabllity to
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pay the ten cents avask per child.

Thﬁ:Ellnt Patrick's Day Plood of 1936 gocurred vhan &
heavy unéufall was followsd hy a haavy rain mpelting the anov
and nlnq&ing tha mtreams apd rivers. The waters rose to
reach the Church's front doors, but no vater hoa ever
snterad ﬁhn main floor of the Church.

Thu|Hnlr Hama Soclaty, a movemsnt throughout the United
Statea for catholic wen, organized a chapter at Baint
Jnniph'n%in 1937. Thia organisaticon provided a wense of
Eathnlin?muralitr to the cormunity and help provids
nan'pnvn? ror church projescts. In 1465, for the centann{pl
celu@:atlnn of the pariah thare were atili 3! mozhars, Hut
it has faded froo exlgtence since then.

1n '1935. saint Joseph Schocl Band was formed. Asm
Fathar EiTI wan reaching the end of his time at Balnt -
Jnneph'l. +ha School splrit and enthualasm vas vaxing ngnin,
Ak induqd the depression was waning, Robart Nicholas wvaa
the diréctor of the Band. The efforts of the parsents with
nany fu%d-railara and baka-splen vare rsvarded when the EBand
was nb;é +o purchass “"natty” icoking wniforms in 1940.

Duénnbur 4, 1939, the Feant of tha Immaculate
cancuptinn. wvas alsc the date that marxed a destructive flre
in the rectary. The dangar of thls fire wvas in its claoss
pruxiliér to the Church. As with most of Renovo bulldings
they veru puilt almeg: on top of one ancthsr. Father Fhillp

J. 0'Dennall, ons of tha nauiatnnhn; vag creadited with

gaving :ha 1ifa of Father Paul Carroll, vho Was badly burned
I
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in the %ire. Fortunately, the fire was confined to the rear
af the %Ectory building and thae cffica part of the rectery
was unh;rmud and sc no harm cams to the Church recorda. The
Murphy residence on Fourth Street and Auron Avenus was used
temporarily ag 2 rectory while rebullding commenced on Ninth
Street., ! During the same year, ocloee on the heels of World
War 1I, Pope Pilum XTI died and wamr succeeded hy Pope Pius

XII. e

Father Howard Miiler replaced Father Gill after hias
death on August 31, 1943, bacowming the thirteenth pastor on
Septembar 7?6 that aawme year. Tncdreasalngly Catholic students
wers gnﬂng to the pukllc schoel, Father Mlller introduced
the Cnngraternitr af Christian Doctrine (C.C.D.) Ffor
rEligiﬂJH education of the public achool studentm. This
program %aﬂ waxed and waned through the years, but contlinues
to the prasant day as the anly form of Relliglous Edacation
for theiﬂathnlic atudent population of the Renoveo area. In
Father Millar's time the Parent Educator Organizatlon
EF.E.D.; replaced the School Board in 1942, This
organization's initial purpoae wam tha financial ald of the
gchool. | Later this organiration bacame the Home-School

apgociation and remeined active until the marhool clomed in

1983.

The Saecond World War was already two years underway,

¥hen Father Miller became pastor. He turned the people'’s
attention to a prayerful resoluticon of the worldvwlde

confllct, conducting regular novena services for our
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pmititary men.

on Lhe occzeian of Renove 01d Home Week, celeheating
the eighLieth anniversary of the berough, a capsuls
dE!EIipthﬂn of the Cathollc influence on the whole commun 1ty
is glven am followe:

+5t .| Joseph's Roman Cathelic, the largest of Renovo's
churches, has over 600 famllies ip ite fold. Rev.
HarJld 7. Miller is the pastor and Rev. Vincent A
Luther, his ssalstant. They Berve a miselon charge ln
Bituman ¥ith 21 familles. The church supporis its awn
elementary school and senfor hilgh schosl. A prograsslive
adult study club and a Parent-Educators group are under
the leadership of the parish priests. The church
property includes a fine echool and convent ag well ag a
IEEJEII and church.”

A3 this synopais peinte out, the Parish of Saint Mary.
in Bituman, PA. had hecome part of the Saint Josaph's
Parish. | Having existed far about forty-flve yeare as A
parish, |the coal strikes of the 1920's and the Ccreat
Depression of the 1930's, reduced the once thriving
conpunity and parlsh in Bitumen. 1In 1936, untll 1t was
digsclived in 1966, Saint Mary'e was served from Saint
Jomsph's ln Renove. In 1956, tha boundarles of of Saint
Mary's parish were incorpeorated lnto Saint Joseph's. The,
Bltumen |[Shrine Associatlon began in 1866 far the

preservation and maintenance of the former parish-church as

s Shrine. This shrine was incorporated as cone of the four
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dlocesan shrines of the Altoona-Johnstown Diocese, sbill
under the independent control and care of tha Shrine
Aspociation. But should the Shrine Rssociation ever fall,
the DIGEJEE will ges to the premervation of this plece of
local anJ dieccesan hiatery. The adjacent Baint Mary's
Cemetary,| bacange it is consecration ground, becams tha third
gite of the Saint Joseph's Cemetery Aesociation.

Faint Joseph'e Athletic Assgociation was formed by the
men of thF parieh Iin 1948 to enhance the intrawmural and
athletic Lrugrama af the schonl. This asscclation rematined
in HxiEtELEE unti1 1967 with the clpaing of tha Cathollc high
school an% tha reducing of the athletic schedules.

Opon Father Miller's death on Movember 14, 1853, Fathar
Albert Bechtold, then asaigtant pastor. became administrator
until the appointment of Father Charles H. Hipp as pastor on
July 31, 1954. Father Hipp vwas a renovator. He renewsed tha
furnishlings in the school. A cafeteris faclllty was
EutubliahLd and outflitted Iin the Church basement for the
benaflt of the schoosl children. FRencvations were aleo done
to the rectory. Among his most memorable achievements was 2
redecorating of the interler of the Church. Included in
thie project were the refurbishing and re-gilding of the
Church thtuarr arid the installing of a new lightling system
and light-fixtures. It i3 the general consensus; that these
chandelisers are what are heing refe:red‘tn as the "Lighting

Tablezau. " In 1956, @ hronge plague dedicatesm the "Lighting

Tableau® as a memarial to "All War Veterans of Renovo and
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viciplty'® Some report that the collection of donatlions
for the rewiring and pew electrical Eixtures Includad people
and crganizaticns outside the parigh census, Yet 1t esema
to elude|paveryone how the term "lighting tableau” (meaning
any plotore or picturesqus representaticn: especially, a

striking|scane presented dramatically) came ta be applied to

chandeliare.

0n October 9, 1957, the Diocese of Altoona wam re-naped
the Dlocese of Altoona-Johnatovn. Thism wae during the

intarim between the death of Bishap Richard T. Gullfoyle,

[
the third bishop of Altcona, and the consecration of Blghop

Howard J. Cerroll. Father Hipp vas among the pastors

tranfarrad by the nav blghop. Father John Auetin 0'Tocle

t
became the flft=enth pastor of Saint Joseph's Parlsh an May

5, 14958, Later In 1958, in Dctobker Pope John XXIYI]

eucceeded Pope Plus XII as Roman Pontiff.

[
Father O0'Tonle realized that there was a need for a ney

convent for tha Sieters, Servants of the Jmmacnlate Aeart of
s | .
Mary, and initiated a $100.9000 building campaign. The lots
b

#32 and 23 on Huron Avenuge were purchased from Jamee Hayes,
an DeéemLer 19, 1958 at the coet of %¥10,000. These aiﬁng
with the p;;pﬂrtr already ovned by the parish; vhich served
ags the Scout Aouse, became the site of the nev convent, The
cnntractlfnr the building was avarded to the Sargent
Construction Company of Nanty Glo, FPA for $105.000.
cround-hreaking ceremonies took place an July 12, 1961,

unfder the administration of Father Richard Contl, a native
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Ban of the par{sh who has later become a Monai{grnour i#f the
ﬂiucnse_nf Altoona-Johnetown. The convent bullding has ties
vith Saint Mark's Farish in Altoona from vhence tha
Blue-prints came, replicating a similar convent bullding In
that parish. The convent was conplated and was occupled by
the Sisters, Servants of the Tmmarulats Heart of Mary on
January |31, [962. Father Contl alaa gupervised the updating
of the schenl building with the installation of efficlent
fire-eacapsg and modern lavatories.

Father Gerald Oeler replaced Father 0'Toale as pastor
on June g. 1962. He wam pastor while the parish celebrated
ita meventy-firfth year in the present church bullding [1967)
and the one hundredth anniversary (1968} of the parigh. Hs
uuper?is;d nev llghting and painting of the interlar of the
arhool; hev heating systemz in the achool and church; paving
the parkkng lot (vhere the old convent was raised in 1962},
rengvation of the near seventy year old church organy
Cleaningfand polnting of the church's brick and stonevork:
refurbishing and cieaning of the staln-glaes windowe and
inatallatiqn of protective storm windows. Father Oeler
would begin to implement tha liturgleal standards of the
Emrond vitinan Councll with changes in the sanctusry and
altar-location.

For|a short peried of the parish history the Legion af
Mary flourlshed, beginning in 1963. This group cerried on
Iocal mimeaienary work, calle on the shut—-{n and

]
hospltalized, and promoted davotion to Mary. For about five
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years, a Ernup called "The Little Singers® under the
dire:tiné of Fathar Joseph Bender delighted and regaled the
parish thh group singing at church and public functions.

ThE:EEEDnd Tratican Council waa only half compleated when -
fope Jnhﬂ XXIII died, hia succesavr Fope Paul VI would
camplete tha councll and begin the implementation phase of
the Eﬂudcil decumente. Saint Joseph's Parish hiatory
includes ;nth of the Vatican Counclla.

It 4?; with great regret and reluctance that Father
Deler fndﬁd it necesaary to closed Saint Josaph High Schodl
in 1567, | Because of a lack of teachers, the nlnety year
tradition which began amo humbly in the frant parlers of the
eld cﬂn?eht on Ninth Strest anded. BSalnt JToseph's Teen
Club, bhé forerunner of our present-day Youth Group was
firmt nrgLnizad ghortly thereafter. + -

Sli;f Josaph Home=-School Assoclation wvas reorganized in
1966 inte the Saint Joseph Schocl Board to foster Catheolic
Educltinq in Renovo. At that time the enrollment of eight
grades UJ; 194 pupils. . .

Decﬁmbﬂr of 1969 saw the transfer of Father Oeler and
the l!siihnunt of Father John ¥. Orlandc @s pastor. THES Dev
pastor w{h faced very shortiy wilth the prospect aof the ~
closing d} Saint Jommeph's School entirely becaums of the
withdrawval of the Sistersa., Servants of the Imwaculate Heart
of Mary Qank to Scranton Dlocese. Wlth mach effort and
ad?ertiuegent. the Catholic School Board and thelir pastor

gecured the services of the Franclscan S5istetrs Trom
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Scotland. | Sixty-nine years of devoted Bervice and many

?ﬂcatinnaltn the Sisters, Servants of the Immaculate Heart
of Mary, ;ndedr but 2 nev Introdoction of the Franclscan
Sisters fgnn Scotland Into our Diocese began.

'n February, 197%, Father Richard Clark replaced Father
Orlandn ag pastor. In 1978, PFope Paul V] died; Fope
John-Panl |1 wam =lacted, installed and 2]led within 29 days;
and the flret non-Itallen pope in 400 years was elected,
Pope John-Paul IT7. A new turn for the Church 1n a time of
approaching darkness for the parish. Father Clark's lot was
to be pastor during & low perlod of the parleh history. The
FranciscaA Sistars and thair stay i{n Renovo after only nine
school terms (in 1980). Thare is no religious order to be
found Lo ﬁeplace them. Father Clark wmakes the convent Into
the rectnfr, vhich becomes the Administraticn Center in 1980,
the 110 yaar old rectory le razed that same year.

Economle conditiona of Clinten County reach .
:atastrnpgic limite, unemployment in the area raaches 80 per
ceant at one point. Famllles are having to move out of the
area in hopas of finding livellhood. Due to low snrollimant,
the inahility to find teachers, and the tranafer of studante
to Public [School because of economic Frustration, Father is
forced to|clomaad Saint Joeeph School before the 1983 karm.
Due to the shrinking slze of the parish, Father Dl?ia
Arseneaulé is transferred, ending the ilong line of

Eixty-four aseistant pastors whe have served at Saint 3

Josaph's, ¥
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The harknﬂﬂﬂ of that pericod is slavw to leave. But
Father Cfark did try to pull parish cooparation togethar and
to bulld parish pride. He 1is noted for hls efforte to clean
and rlpli} tha parigh cemateries. He is responsible for the

Internment | Chapel that graces our Hyner Cemetery, and the pine tree

Cross.

Fltﬁér Clark ended hie term as pastor in April of 198%,
being rﬂélanad as pastor by Father Ronald V. Osinsaxi. Fer
EnmetimEJ various plundearing of tha fixtures of Saint Joseph
School had been going on (radiators, lavatory fixtures,
plumbing and lighting fixturea). After a2 couple of years
with pno nent. in which C.C.D, clasass wars nonsthelsps haeld,;
the prauituru deterinration of the school necessiatad a

decision. To refurkleh the Echool for some as yet unkiown
|

parish pﬁrpnse or to raze the bullding. Economlces of the
timen hu#ng what they were, theilesa expensive decimlon was
nade. Tﬁa vracking ball did its work In 1%87. At Mamorial
Shrine té gaint Jogeph wam built upon the slte to
l:tnnulnég& tha affarts of one hundred and seven yaars of
Catholic|Parechial Scheol Education In Renove, and the
neventy—ﬁun ¥Yaars nf uge of that bullding [the bBuilding 1ay
vertuallﬁ dormant for four years, with enly C.C.D. claseas
baing he;d. pefore |t was torn down.] Bishop James J. Hogan
retires after twenty-one years as prelate of the Diocesa of
Altoona=-Johngtown; in Way of 19687 Bishop Joasph V. Adamec
becomes khn firgt non-Irish bishop of our Dioccense.

A h;inf pagstcrate vaa enjoyed by Fr. Phillp Bender from
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June until December 1988. Perhaps for the diccesan policy
|
wakers, Fr. Bender is a testimony that there neads to ba a
I

H
period of adjustment for long-term pastor to adapt to nev.
zesignments.
hndinn on January 26, 1989, Saint Joaeph's Parish
1

receivad|ita tventi-first pastor, Fr. D. Timothy Griome.

Tt I8 a time of change within the diocaaa, Bishop Adamec
ancourages the davelopment of Parlish Pamtoral and Finance

touncils: These Counclls along with the axisting -
nrganl:aLinnu of the parish and the Minietries of the parish
help to maintain snd advige the direction of the
Parish-Family. In 1992, was celebrated the event of the
tuilding)of the presant Saint Joamsph's Church in 189%.

The Celsbration was & Festival, July 10-11-12. Tha Spirle
of that celsbration seems evidant in the re-actlvated
Enlghts ;f Columbue Council, #547; the 2already active
Cahholicinaughtara of the Amerlcas, Court S5t. Veronlca #111;

tha Altar and Rosary Soclety; and the Saint Jeseph's Youth
Group. Lhene organizations all worked hard on the joint
celebration, and hold many events of their own as well.

on Lpril 1%, 19%3, Father Carl S5plshak succaedad Fr.
Grimme ar pastor nf.saint Joseph's Pariszh. As wa prepare to
calabrats thé'nileatnne of the (uasgquicentannial, in 1994,
April 5,[ 1994 is slated for a celabration with the Bishop
and the Parlah. But celebratlona of the past are only |
?llhibli}au incentives for the future growth. Fr. Glliigan.
Fr. Flnk, and Fr. Kaalin'g ﬂurkrcnntinuaa in the time of Fr.

Epinhak.i The Falth of the famllles of 16869 is handed on to

the families in 19%4. #e in turn prepares to hand thew on to

anothar |generaticn and generationa ag yet unborn.



